
MEETING: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

DATE: 12th June 2019

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle

Member

Cllr. Ian Moncur (Chair)
Cllr. Paul Cummins 
Cllr. John Joseph Kelly
Dwayne Johnson
Matthew Ashton
Dr Andrew Mimnagh
Dr. Rob Caudwell
Fiona Taylor
Richard Freeman
Maureen Kelly
Steve Warburton
Lorraine Webb
Andrew Booth
Angela White

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Caitlin Manion 
Trainee Democratic Services Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2070
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: caitlin.manion@sefton.gov.uk

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12)

3.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

4.  SEND OFSTED/CQC Review (Pages 13 - 
22)

Report of the Chief Executive. 

5.  Children's Plan, Priority Update: Priority 1, Positive 
Educational Experience

(Pages 23 - 
32)

Report of the Head of Education Excellence. 

6.  Children and Young Peoples Plan Update (Pages 33 - 
50)

Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care.

7.  Better Care Fund Update (Pages 51 - 
60)

Report of the Chief Executive.

8.  Refresh of Sefton's Health and Wellbeing Strategy -
Proposed Consultation and Engagement

(Pages 61 - 
78)

Report of the Director of Public Health. 



9.  Adult Forum
Verbal update from the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care.



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN”

1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE
ON  13 MARCH 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Moncur (in the Chair)

Councillors Cummins, John Joseph Kelly, Jan 
Campbell, Richard Freeman, Dwayne Johnson and 
Fiona Taylor

30. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Margaret Carney, Dr Rob 
Caudwell, Maureen Kelly, Dr Andrew Mimnagh, Steve Warburton and 
Angela White.  

31. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 December, 2018 be confirmed 
as a correct record. 
 

32. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received.

33. PLANNING 19/20 AND BEYOND - SHAPING SEFTON 2 - 
LINKED TO NHS LONG TERM PLAN 

The Board considered the report of Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer, NHS South 
Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group, which presented the main elements 
of the NHS Long Term Plan, the 2019-20 Contract and Operational 
Planning Guidance and the approach to planning to be adopted locally 
between the CCGs and the Local Authority following the refresh of the 
Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

The report highlighted that every year the CCG was required to produce 
an Operational Plan which set out how the CCG would commission 
services to meet the requirements set out in national NHS policy. Each 
year, NHS England published contracting and planning guidance that set 
out again the national NHS priorities, stipulated any additional mandated 
requirements for CCGs and providers, e.g. work force requirements, 
prescribed the way in which any growth in funding would be allocated and 
set out the contracting sign off process and associated deadlines. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 13TH MARCH, 2019

2

The report also highlighted that in 2017 and 2018 the CCGs published 
their Operational Plans, “Highway to Health” setting out how they would 
respond to NHS England Requirements. The report stated that, in addition 
to the National Health Service priorities, the CCG must also set out how it 
would address local priorities as identified with the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) which were then articulated in the local Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. In response to the Sefton Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, the CCGs created and implemented the ‘Shaping of Sefton 
Strategy’ for NHS Southport and Formby CCG and NHS South Sefton 
CCG. The report also stated that Sefton’s current Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, Living Well in Sefton covers the period 2014-2020. 

The report highlighted that an updated JSNA was published in 2018 and 
made recommendations on the following priority themes:- 

 Child health, development and the impact of child poverty;
 Best Start in Life, with a parent and early years focus on sexual and 

reproductive health, smoking in pregnancy and breastfeeding;
 Prevention and early diagnosis of long-term conditions, particularly 

cardiovascular disease;
 Obesity and the implications for long-term population health; 
 Mental health, particularly in association with substance use; and 
 The Impact of social isolation on health and wellbeing.

The report stated that the current Health and Wellbeing Strategy would 
now be reviewed and revised to ensure that it reflected the agreed 
priorities for action over the next five years. The report also stated that the 
publication of the new strategy was scheduled for January 2020. The 
CCGs were working in conjunction with the Local Authority colleagues to 
develop a five-year health, care and wellbeing partnership plan for Sefton. 

The report also highlighted that the NHS Operational Planning and 
Contracting Guidance was published on 10 January 2019 and set out the 
requirements for a much more collaborative approach to planning in 
2019/20 and beyond. Specifically, it required every NHS trust, NHS 
foundation trust and CCGs to agree organisational-level operational plans 
which combined to form a coherent system-level operational plan. For the 
CCGs, these would then be incorporated into the Cheshire and 
Merseyside Health and Care Partnership wider plans.

The report highlighted the following key objectives of the 2019/20 CCG 
Operational Plan:- 

 Alignment of plans - between CCGs and providers setting out how 
they would collectively make best use of the financial resources 
available;

 Payment reform – national tariff, contracting and CQUINN 
requirements;

 Health inequalities – continuing to reduce health inequalities; 
 Maternity – improving outcomes for babies and mothers;

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 13TH MARCH, 2019

3

 New financial framework for providers and for CCGs – 
additional funding to be used to continue to meet Mental Health 
Investment Standard (MHIS) and increase investment in primary 
and community services; 

 Reduction in CCG administration costs – CCGs are expected to 
deliver a 20% real term reduction by 2020/21; 

 Specialised services and other direct commissioning 
priorities: 

o Cancer – innovative treatments, improved pathways, new 
standards; 

o Mental health – high quality, integrated services closer to 
home and reducing inappropriate out of area placements; 

o Learning disability and autism – reducing the number of 
those treated in an in-patient setting; 

o Cardiovascular – meeting standards 24 hours a day; 
o Babies, children and young people – reducing mortality 

and treatments received in the most appropriate 
environment; 

o Long term conditions – aiming to eliminate disease ahead 
of World Health Organisation (WHO) goals; 

o Genomics and personalised medicine – enabling patients 
to access the latest advances. 

 Mental Health Investment – CCGs must continue to increase 
investment in mental health (adults, children and young people) in 
line with MHIS. Compliance with this requirement is to be externally 
audited. 

 Continued focus on productivity and efficiency;
 Implementation of Personal Health Budgets (PHBs); 
 Improving Emergency Care;
 Improving waiting times and choice for patients;
 Workforce – ensuring providers have appropriate workforce 

strategies in place to enable them to provide safe sustainable 
services to patients;

 Data and technology – improving the quality of data and reporting. 

The report stated that the CCGs Operational Plans, entitled ‘Highway to 
Health’ which was available to view on the CCG website, would be due for 
submission to NHS England on 4 April 2019. Thereafter, the CCGs priority 
focus, in collaboration with Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council and 
others, would be on the development of a new five-year partnership plan 
for Sefton, which would flow from the refreshed Sefton Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. The report also stated that the five-year plan would be 
the updated Shaping Sefton Strategy II which would also set out the 
response to the NHS Long Term Plan. 

The report highlighted that, in response to the Governments five-year 
funding settlement for the NHS in June 2018, the NHS developed the Long 
Term Plan. 

The following key points were summarised:

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 13TH MARCH, 2019

4

 A new service model for the 21st Century; 
 More NHS action on prevention and health inequalities, including;

o To cut smoking
o To reduce obesity
o To limit alcohol related A&E admissions
o To lower air pollution

 Further progress on care quality and outcomes;
 NHS staff will get the backing they need;
 Digitally-enabled care will go mainstream across the NHS;
 Getting the most out of the tax payers’ investment in the NHS; and 
 Supporting wider social goals in respect of the following areas;

o Employment 
o Health and justice system
o Veterans and armed forces
o Care leavers
o Health and environment

The report also highlighted that senior members of the Local Authority and 
the CCG had met to discuss the approach to planning for 2020/21 – 
2023/24. It had been agreed that the CCG’s five-year plan (refreshed 
Shaping Sefton Strategy II) would be a plan that was developed in true 
partnership to meet the needs of those living in the place of Sefton. The 
report stated that the Health and Wellbeing Strategy Group would oversee 
the refresh. The report also stated that the proposed approach to how 
consultation and engagement should be undertaken would be subject for 
review by the Consultation and Engagement Panel on Friday 15 March 
2019 and the next steps would be finalised once the decision had been 
made. The report concluded that the anticipated sign-off date for the 
Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Shaping Sefton Strategy II 
would take place in September 2019. 

RESOLVED: 

That the report be noted. 

34. DRAFT - EARLY HELP STRATEGY 2019-2025 

The Board considered the report of the Director of Social Care and Health 
which presented a draft of the Early Help Strategy 2019-2025 and outlined 
the process to develop the strategy further over the next four months. 

The report highlighted that the strategy would support the ‘right help, from 
the right person, at the right time’ principles being adopted across Sefton 
which would help ensure a cohesive early help offer. The strategy would 
be delivered by all partners collectively with a commitment to:

 Working better together in an open, honest partnership approach 
with consent of the child and their family;

 Identifying strengths and needs and working together to find 
practical and achievable solutions; 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 13TH MARCH, 2019

5

 Providing the right information and advice to enable children and 
their families to make positive changes themselves with support 
tailored to their needs; and 

 Help children and their families to build protective factors and family 
resilience to prevent situations recurring. 

The report stated that early help meant providing help for children and 
families as soon as problems started to emerge or when there was a 
strong likelihood that problems would emerge in the future. If early help 
was not offered, there would be a very real risk that for some children, 
their social and emotional development would be irrevocably impaired, 
they would experience significant harm, or their family life would break 
down. The report also stated that early help included targeted services 
designed to reduce needs or prevent specific problems from becoming 
entrenched, and there was significant evidence that early help could make 
a difference in improving outcomes. 

The report contained a first early draft of Sefton Council’s strategic 
intentions, and the next stage would involve the community working 
together with partners to explore the overall vision and principles, and 
would develop early help approaches and services to co-produce some of 
the services together. The report stated that this would allow Sefton to 
provide a joined up, effective early help offer for children aged 0 to 19 and 
their families. Support services would be provided at a locality level, would 
be evidence-based and would be delivered by delivering universal and 
early help services. 

The report highlighted that the Early Help Strategy would be delivered 
through an Early Help Action Plan which would be co-produced with 
Voluntary Sector and other groups, for example, Sefton Parent Carer 
Forum. It would set out the priority areas for actions, and would state who 
was responsible for delivering the agreed actions, how progress would be 
monitored and when actions would be completed. The report stated that 
the partnership would be utilising the maturity model, a system of self-
assessment tools for local partnerships and agencies who were putting 
early intervention into practice, devised by MHCLG. 

The report concluded that following engagement within the community, the 
Director of Social Care and Health would return to the Board in the 
summer with a fully developed Early Help Strategy and would demonstrate 
how this had been co-produced. 

RESOLVED: That

(1) the draft strategy be noted; and 

(2) it be noted that following consultation, the Director of Social Care and 
Health would draft a report for the Board to be considered in Summer 
2019. 

35. CHILDREN PLAN – PRIORITY 4 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 13TH MARCH, 2019

6

The Board considered the report of the Director of Social Care and Health 
which updated the Members on the progress across priority four within the 
Sefton Children Plan 2015-2020. 

The report highlighted that there were four key priorities contained within 
the Sefton Children Plan 2015-2020, these included:

1. Ensure all Children and Young People have a positive educational 
experience; 

2. Ensure all Children are supported to have a healthy start in life and a 
health adulthood; 

3. Improving the quality of lives Young People with additional needs and 
vulnerabilities, to ensure they are safe and fulfil their individual potential; 
and 

4. Ensure positive emotional health and wellbeing of Children and Young 
People is achieved. 

The report stated that, last year, the Director of Social Care and Health 
undertook a comprehensive review of the Plan in conjunction with 
partners, key agencies, children and young people and parent/carers. The 
report also stated that since then, further work had been undertaken to 
provide more focus and scrutiny on the four priorities. 

The report highlighted that one of the priorities was to ‘ensure positive 
emotional health and wellbeing of children and young people is achieved’ 
and the report provided an update on the progress against this priority and 
identified the actions and areas for further examination. The following 
actions were highlighted within the report:

1. Statutory Guidance for Local Authorities on Services and Activities to 
Improve Young People’s Well-being; 

2. Children and Young people’s experience of loneliness and Sefton 
Council’s Year of Friendship; 

3. Mental Health Training for Schools; 

4. An audit tool for better Mental Health in Schools; and 

5. The NHS Long Term Plan 

RESOLVED: 

That the specific content relating to priority four within the Sefton Children 
Plan 2015-2020 be noted. 

36. SEND IMPROVEMENT PLAN UPDATE 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 13TH MARCH, 2019

7

The Board considered the report of the Head of Education Excellence 
which provided Members with an update on the actions being taken to 
address the concerns raised at the SEND Inspection as part of the SEND 
statement of action. 

The report highlighted that the SEND Code of Practice set out the 
expectations on local authorities, educational providers, social care and 
health providers to provide, commission and deliver services to support 
children and young people aged 0 to 25 who have SEND (Special 
Educational Needs and Disability). Local authorities, NHS England and 
their partner CCGs must make arrangements for agreeing the education, 
health and social care provision reasonably required by local children and 
young people with SEN and disabilities. 

The report also highlighted that the local area SEND inspection in 
November 2016 tested the identification of need in the local area, what 
support was provided and the impact that the support was having. The 
report stated that the inspection found weaknesses in the way that the 
local area provided the support required and required the local area to 
submit a Written Statement of Action detailing how the weaknesses would 
be addressed. The report highlighted that the five areas of weaknesses 
were:

 To improve the poor progress made from starting points by pupils 
with a statement of special educational needs or an Educational 
Health Care Plan (EHCP) at Key Stages 2 and 4; 

 To address the poor operational oversight of the DCO across health 
services in supporting children and young people who have special 
educational needs and/or disabilities and their families; 

 To improve the lack of awareness and understanding of health 
professionals in terms of their responsibilities and contribution to 
EHCPs; 

 To address the weakness of co-production with parents, and more 
generally in communication with parents; and

 To address the weakness of joint commissioning in ensuring that 
there are adequate services to meet local demand. 

The report stated that the Written Statement detailed how the weaknesses 
would be addressed over a three-year period. 

RESOLVED: 

That the report be noted and the Head of Education Excellence be 
requested to feedback on progress on the SEND Improvement Plan in six 
months’ time.  
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 13TH MARCH, 2019

8

37. ADULT FORUM 

The Board received a verbal update from Councillor Cummins, Cabinet 
Member – Adult Social Care, on the Adult Forum. Councillor Cummins 
highlighted the following:- 

 The Adult Forum received strategy report updates for: Adult Social 
Care Strategy, Carer Strategy, Older People Strategy, End of Life 
Strategy, and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 The Transforming Care Partnership Board (TCPB) would now 
include Autism on its agenda, following the Autism Act 2010. 
Councillor Cummins highlighted that Claire Maguire would be 
invited to future meetings of the TCPB. 

 The Adult Forum received a Mental Health update. Councillor 
Cummins informed the Board that Sefton in Mind was being 
reinvigorated. 

 Commissioning Support were in the process of working on a new 
domiciliary care contract. 

 Carers had completed a consultation with young carers in 
transitions (16-25) funded through Lloyd’s foundation. The report 
recommended that the young carers services should open at 16 not 
18. 

 The partnership with Veterans in Sefton. 
 New Directions would publish their International Business Strategy 

and Business Plan on 1 April 2019. This would fit into MPS and 
JSNA. 

 The Sefton Housing Strategy. 
 Sefton CVS would be transitioning to the new team structure. 
 Communications discussed Sefton’s 2019 Year of Friendship in 

respect to tackling social isolation and loneliness.
 Autism Awareness training had been developed in conjunction with 

the Autism Hub. This training was being made mandatory training 
for all staff in the Council and would be available to access by 
anyone else. 

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Cummins be thanked for his verbal update. 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 12 
June 2019

Subject: SEND OFSTED/CQC Revisit

Report of: Chief Executive Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Children, Schools and Safeguarding

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

The report updates the Board on the Ofsted and Care Quality Commission joint local 
area special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND) revisit This was undertaken in 
Sefton between 15th to 17th April 2019. The revisit is a follow up to the SEND Inspection 
held in 2016. The report details the key actions since the revisit. The process and next 
steps. 

Recommendations:

(1) The Board is asked to note the contents of this report.  

(2) The Board is asked to ratify the establishment of a SEND Continuous 
Improvement Board and to receive updates from this group.

(3) The Board is asked to continue its critical role in the continuous improvement of 
the joint local area SEND Offer to our Children and Young People and their 
families.  

Reasons for the Recommendations:

The paper informs and updates the Board. 

The role of the Health & Wellbeing Board includes encouraging integrated working 
between health services, public health and social care services and to develop their 
commissioning plans and ensure that they take proper account of the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy when developing these plans.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

Not applicable.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
 
Not Applicable.

(B) Capital Costs

Not Applicable.

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
There are no direct financial implications from this report.

However, it should be noted in December 2018 the Government announced, “Children 
with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) are set to benefit from an extra 
£350 million funding to provide specialist support and tailored facilities, helping those 
with complex needs to succeed.”

The Local Government Association (LGA) states “There is simply not enough money to 
keep up with demand, leaving many councils unable to meet their statutory duties and 
meaning children with high needs or disabilities could miss out on a mainstream 
education.”

The High Needs Budget in 2018/19 overspent by £2.3m.  This is after taking into 
account the additional £562k awarded in December 2018 as part of Sefton’s share of 
the £350m two-year additional funding.

Annual expenditure has risen by £4.5m between 2014/15 and 2018/19 an increase of 
17.7%, whereas annual High Needs funding has only increased by £2.392m (9.4%) 
across the same period, this includes taking inter-DSG block funding transfers into 
account.

Legal Implications: 

The Children and Families Act (2014) places a statutory duty on local authorities,
education providers, CCGs and other NHS organisations to provide support for children 
and young people with SEN or disabilities aged 0-25. In doing these local authorities, 
NHS England and their partner CCGs must make arrangements for agreeing the 
education, health and social care provision reasonably required by local children and 
young people with SEN or disabilities.

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: Ensure a focused response on providing improved 
outcomes for the children young people with SEND and their families. 
Facilitate confident and resilient communities: The Council and Health Partners must 
deliver a high quality, seamless, outcome focused SEND offer to children young people 
and their families to support confident and resilient communities. 
Commission, broker and provide core services: 
Place – leadership and influencer:  The Council will work with partners, in particular 
Health, to deliver high quality, seamless, outcome focused SEND offer to children 
young people and their families. 

Drivers of change and reform: The Council will work with partners, in particular Health, 
to make change happen so as to improve outcomes for children and young people.
  
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Not Applicable 

Greater income for social investment: Not Applicable 

Cleaner Greener Not Applicable 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD 5649/19 and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD 4773/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

Officers of all parties will ensure that all members of the SEND workforce are aware of 
the outcome of the revisit, the content of the WSoA and progress against plan.

(B) External Consultations 

The Council has engaged with the CCG and other Health partners on this matter.  This 
engagement has been led by the Chief Executive.

With regard to future operational and commissioning changes there are different 
definitions of collaboration and coproduction but there is a consensus that working 
together leads to improved outcomes for people who use services and carers, as well as 
a positive impact on the workforce. The Council’s approach will not just be about 
partnerships across sector boundaries. It is much more about combining the knowledge, 
skills and experience of people who access activities and services, delivering services 
and commissioning services, working together on an equal basis to achieve positive 
change and improve lives and outcomes.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



Contact Officer: Eleanor Moulton
Telephone Number: 07779162882 
Email Address: eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

A. Terms of Reference of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board 

Background Papers:

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



1. Introduction

1.1 At the time of writing this report the feedback from Ofsted and the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) had not been published and it is the intention of 
the Chief Executive to share the feedback with the Health & Wellbeing Board 
at the meeting if it is published by that date.  This report updates the Health & 
Wellbeing Board on the process of the Ofsted and Care Quality Commission 
in the joint local area special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND) 
revisit that took place between 15th to 17th April 2019. 

1.2 This report outlines what happened prior to the revisit and what key actions 
have happened since.  The report will highlight key milestones. 

1.3 The report also sets out the Health & Wellbeing Board’s role going forward. 

2. Background 

2.1 Sefton underwent a local area SEND inspection in November 2016. This 
tested identification of need in the local area, what support was provided and 
the impact that support was having.

2.2 The Inspection found weaknesses in the way the local area provided the 
support required and required the local area to submit a Written Statement of 
Action (WSOA) detailing how the weaknesses would be addressed over a 3-
year period.

2.3      The five areas of weakness identified were:

To improve the poor progress made from starting points by pupils with a
statement of special educational needs or an EHCP at Key Stages 2 and 4
To address the poor operational oversight of the DCO across health
services in supporting children and young people who have special
educational needs and/or disabilities and their families
To improve the lack of awareness and understanding of health
professionals in terms of their responsibilities and contribution to EHCPs
To address the weakness of co-production with parents, and more
generally, in communication with parents
To address the weakness of joint commissioning in ensuring that there are
adequate services to meet local demand

2.4 Members will recall that in March 2019, they considered a report that detailed 
the actions that had been completed in seeking to address the 5 areas of 
weakness. These included; 

 a Quality first offer in schools to ensure early identification
 that high needs funding was provided through a panel process
 that all SENCO staff received local authority training
 that there was a focus on transitions 
 that a Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) had been jointly appointed 

with Liverpool and was utilising the ability to share best practice. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



 That agreement to align LAC Health assessments had happened 
 That the ASD pathway was incorporated into the Commissioning 

plan
 That a multi-agency quality assurance group was established
 That best practice reviews and outcome training for all staff had 

happened 
 That there was a council agreed approach to coproduction 

established, which was used to co-produce the neurodevelopment 
pathway, establish Personal Budgets for transport and explore 
personal health budgets

 That there was Director level engagement with the Parent Carer 
Forum and the Sefton Savvy app, an app which provides 
information and support for anyone under 25 with additional needs 
was developed.  

3. The Re-visit

3.1 Ofsted and CQC jointly inspect local areas to see how well they fulfil their     
responsibilities for children and young people with special educational needs 
and/or disabilities. These inspections provide an independent external 
evaluation of how well a local area carries out its statutory duties (under the 
Children’s and Families Act 2014) in relation to children and young people 
with special educational needs and/or disabilities to support their 
development. The inspection reviews how local areas support these children 
and young people.

3.2 Local areas with a WSoA are re-visited by Ofsted and the CQC, usually 
around 18 months after the statement has been approved as fit for purpose. 
The sole purpose of the re-visit is to determine whether the local area has 
made sufficient progress in addressing the areas of significant weakness 
detailed by the WSOA. The focus of each re-visit is the areas identified in the 
WSOA. However, if any other serious weaknesses are identified during the re-
visit, these will be referenced in the re-visit letter. The re-visit inspection team 
is led by Her Majesty's Inspector (HMI) who is accompanied by a CQC 
inspector. 

3.3 The re-visit is quality assured by senior HMI from Ofsted and by nominated 
inspectors from the CQC. The respective inspectorates decide whether these 
re-visits are quality assured on site or off site. In Sefton’s case the revisit took 
place on site between 15th and 17th April 2019.

3.4 Following the visit Ofsted and CQC will publish their review contained in a 
letter. This is expected to be publicly available on 10th June 2019.   It should be 
noted if a local area is making insufficient progress in any of the serious 
weaknesses identified, it is for the Department for Education and NHS England 
to determine the next steps. This may include the Secretary of State using his 
powers of intervention. Ofsted and the CQC will not carry out any further re-
visits unless directed to do so by the Secretary of State.

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



3.5 If the letter is published prior to the Health and Wellbeing Board’s meeting the 
Board will be verbally updated of the detail of the outcome of the revisit. 

4. Key Actions since the revisit

4.1    The local area has begun preparation in advance of the revisit outcome. Led 
by the Council Chief Executive, Chief Officer of the two local Clinical 
Commissioning Groups, and Health Leaders a Joint SEND Continuous 
Improvement Board has been established with a remit to; 

 ensure all Children and Young People experience services positively 
and get the best possible outcomes

 ensure a robust improvement plan is in place and is delivered
 provide effective system wide oversight
 provide assurance to the Health and Wellbeing Board that Children and 

parents are supported in line with the SEND Code of Practice
 provide constructive challenge. 

The terms of reference for this Board are available at Annex A.

4.4 Following the publication of the outcome letter if there is a requirement to 
produce a Written Statement of Action then the new WSoA will be submitted to 
the inspectorate by approximately the 30th July. The development of the 
WSoA will need to be a joint activity and as the draft develops it will need to be 
considered in quality assurance workshops.

4.5   If the WSoA is required and agreed the progress will need to be reported back 
to Cabinet Member (Children, Schools and Safeguarding), Overview & Scrutiny 
(Children’s Services & Safeguarding), schools and families on a regular basis.

5. Conclusion

The Board are asked to note the content of the report and await a more 
comprehensive report at Septembers scheduled meeting of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. Going forward the Board are asked to offer robust challenge 
and oversight to the continuous improvement of the local are offer to Children, 
Young People and their families. 

Annex A – Terms of Reference 

Special Educational Needs and Disability Continuous Improvement Board

1. Key Purpose

a. To ensure that a robust special educational needs and disabilities (SEND), 
Improvement plan is in place and delivered to respond to the joint OFSTED/CQC 
revisit to review the partnership weaknesses, which were initially identified in the 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



SEND Inspection in November 2016. The main purpose being to improve 
outcomes and demonstrate impact for children and young people and support 
parents and carers.

b. To provide effective oversight of the whole SEND system and interconnecting 
systems and services relevant to the SEND agenda.

c.  Provide assurance to the Health and Well Being Board, Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and partner agencies that services, systems and processes are 
contributing effectively to keeping children and parents   supported, in line with the 
SEND Code of Practice

d. To work across all parts of the SEND system and partners to ensure the whole 
system works seamlessly and keeping children at the centre of what we do and 
that all education and healthcare (EHCP) plans are co-produced with children and 
young people and parent/carers

e. To ensure that the voices and views of children, young people and families are 
included in all aspects of the improvement plan and subsequent work streams so 
as to ensure that the experiences of all children, young people and families are 
positive.

f. To provide constructive challenge across the system around performance and 
impact and work to the best possible outcomes for children and young people 
within available resources.

2. Responsibilities

The Board will develop and enact processes and procedures that will ensure the key 
purpose above is delivered.  In particular it should hold individuals, the Council, health 
services and other partners to account for the SEND service and overall Improvement 
plan.

The Board’s key responsibilities will be

a. To identify and agree key performance measures and targets – which will 
demonstrate impact and provide assurance.

b. Hold all agencies, to account for the delivery of the Sefton Improvement Plan, and 
any other improvement plans as appropriate 

c. Have a planned approach to scrutinising and challenging the effectiveness of 
services and front line practice and reporting against agreed metrics. This will 
include the commissioning of independent audits and reviews as a mechanism to 
ensure performance is improved and sustained.

d. To enable a culture of continuous quality improvement which is embedded across 
all organisations and ensure there is an understanding and sharing of good 
practice.

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



e. To ensure the necessary actions and appropriate resources are available and 
directed to areas of concern.

f. To challenge the pace and quality of improvement progress and ensure delivery 
against agreed timescales recognising the need to secure accelerated 
improvements turn into outcomes.  

g. To report to Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny, CCG Governing Bodies, NHS 
Provider Forums as appropriate and the Health and Wellbeing Board.

3. Membership

Chief Executive
CCG Chief Officer
CCG representatives
NHS partners
Vol Sector and Parent/Carers across the system
Cabinet Member – Children, Schools and Safeguarding
Director of Children’s Services
Head of Service, Children’s Social Care
Head of Service, Education
Head of Service, Communities
Head of Service, Strategic Support
A representative from each phase of education i.e. Primary, Secondary and Special 
Schools 

Mechanisms will also be put in place to engage with children, young people, families and 
frontline staff

4. Frequency

The Board will meet monthly and provide 3 monthly updates to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

May also want to say about expectation that members will attend a minimum of 90% of 
meetings and will ensure a suitable deputy will attend in their absence.

Also that terms of reference will be reviewed on a minimum of an annual basis

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 12 
June 2019

Subject: Children's Plan, Priority Update: Priority 1, Positive Educational 
Experience

Report of: Head of Service 
Education 
Excellence

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Councillor John Joseph Kelly

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

The Health and Wellbeing Board have previously requested a focus on the progress 
against the four priority areas of the current Children and Young Peoples plan. They wish 
to receive a program of focused update of progress against individual priorities. This is 
the second update and will present progress against priority 1, giving each child a 
positive educational experience. 

Recommendations:

(1) That the Board note the report  

Reasons for the Recommendations:

The report is presented for the boards information. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

(A) Revenue Costs

See above.

(B) Capital Costs

See above.

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Not applicable. 

Legal Implications:

Not applicable. 
Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: By ensuring equality of access a positive education 
experience. 
Facilitate confident and resilient communities: by allowing all Children the opportunity to 
receive a positive educational experience 
Commission, broker and provide core services: not applicable 
Place – leadership and influencer: This priority seeks to drive up standards of education 
across the board. The paper seeks to demonstrate this.  
Drivers of change and reform: not applicable 
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Through ensuring educational attainment is 
a focus for the council 
Greater income for social investment:  Not applicable 
Cleaner Greener: Not Applicable. 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD 5656/19) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD 4780/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable. 

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Mike McSorley, or Eleanor Moulton

Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 3428

Email Address: mike.mcsorley@sefton.gov.uk; 
eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Appendices:  There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:  There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



1. Introduction

1.1 The Children Plan 2015 – 2020 sets out the councils Vision “We want every Child 
and Young Person to reach their full potential. We want every Child to be healthy, 
happy safe and secure and to feel loved valued and respected and be prepared 
for adulthood” 

Priority One of achieving this vision is; To ensure that all children and Young 
People have a positive educational experience. 

           The remainder of this report will reflect progress against this priority. 

1.2 This report is based on the latest data released by the DfE at the time of writing 
and individual school performance can be found via the following link:
https://www.gov.uk/school-performance-tables

1.3 Information on the percentage of good and outstanding school based on the latest
Ofsted inspections can be found via the following link: 
http://www.watchsted.com/tables

1.4 Government policy is based on the principle that in a self-improving system, 
schools are responsible for their own educational improvement. Government want 
a system where school leaders take the lead in identifying their own improvement 
needs and securing the most suitable support, working with their trust or Local 
Authority (LA) and diocese as relevant.  Government’s aspiration is that the local 
authority will be act as champions of high education standards with governors and 
headteachers being responsible for school performance (education standards and 
outcomes) in their school

2. Ofsted inspections

2.1 Overall, 74.3% of pupils in Sefton attend a good or outstanding school.

2.2 96.3% of primary pupils attend a good or outstanding school; This places Sefton 
15th nationally and the 2nd in the NW. However only 13.2% are outstanding with 
83.1% good.

2.3 However, only 42.8% of secondary pupils attend a good or outstanding school 
(18.1 outstanding, 24.7% good, 46.5% RI and 10.8% inadequate). This places 
Sefton 156th nationally and 24th worst in NW (only Knowsley has worse 
performance.)

2.4 This has been strongly influenced by recent RI gradings for Maricourt, Sacred 
Heart and Range. Holy Family, which has recently been inspected is the only 
good or outstanding catholic secondary school in Sefton. These schools are part 
of the Archdiocese of Liverpool School Improvement Trust.

3. Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) Profile

Page 26

Agenda Item 5

http://www.watchsted.com/tables


3.1 The key measure at EYFS is the percentage of children achieving a good level of 
development and the figure for Sefton is 70.8%, the table below gives the regional 
and national comparison:

EYFS Sefton NW England. 
GLD % 70.8 68.9 71.5
GLD % (boys) 64.9 N/A 64.9
GLD % (girls) 77.2 N/A 78.4

3.2 GLD in Sefton is joint 5th highest in NW and higher than NW average and just 
marginally lower than the National average. GLD has increased for the last 3 
years (marginally over last 2 years) and higher than NW average.

3.3 GLD for boys is 12.3 percentage points lower than for girls and there are large 
geographic differences in GLD (Trinity St Peters 86.7%, Linacre 41.7%)

4. Year 1 Phonics

4.1 The general year 1 phonics measure is the percentage of children meeting the 
expected standard.

Yr 1 Phonics (% 
making expected 
progress)

Sefton NW Eng

All 82.9 81.6 82.6
Boys 81 78 79
Girls 85 85 85

4.2 In Sefton yr1 phonics is on 2 year upward trend and the 5th highest in NW. The 
gap between boys and girls, however, is lower in Sefton than NW and Eng’

4.3 There are large geographic differences in Phonics (St Philips and Summerhill
96.7%, OLOW 60%)

4.4 Sefton received a letter from Nick Gibb regarding positive progress in phonics.

5. Key Stage 1 Outcomes

5.1 The two general measures at KS1 are the percentage of children achieving the 
expected standard and the percentage of children achieving greater depth in 
reading, writing and maths.

% achieving 
‘expected standard’

Sefton NW England 

Reading 73 74 75
Writing 68 70 70
Maths 76 76 76
RWM 63 65 65

In Sefton there is a 3 yr upward trend although this is still lagging behind NW and 
England figures. For RWM Boys achieve 12.4 percentage points worse than girls.

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



There is significant variation between schools for RWM at expected: Linacre 
29.6%; St Robert Bellarmine 83.9%

% achieving 
‘greater depth’

Sefton NW England. 

Reading 21 23 26
Writing 12 14 16
Maths 19 20 22
RWM 9 10 12

This is a much more challenging measure and Sefton’s combined figure is lower 
than the national and regional figures with writing again being the weakest area.

6. Key Stage 2 Outcomes

6.1 The two general measures at KS2 are the percentage of children achieving the 
‘Expected Standard’ and the percentage of children achieving 'a Higher Standard’ 
in reading, writing and maths.

% achieving 
‘expected standard’

Sefton NW Eng 

RWM 67 64 64
Reading 79 75 75
Writing 80 78
Maths 79 76 76
GPS 81 78 78

6.2 There is significant variation between schools: RWM at expected standard is 93% 
in Summerhill and 23% in Thomas Gray. Thomas Gray has 17.1% persistent 
absence compared to the average for Sefton primary schools of 9.3%.  
Performance differences between boys and girls is not as pronounced at this level 
with girls averaging a 4 percentage point increase over boys (69% to 65%)

6.3 There is significant variation in the achievement of disadvantaged pupils from 
100% (Melling) to 13% (Thomas Gray).

6.4 KS2 progress in Sefton is above the national average (0.9 reading, 0.1 writing and 
0.7 maths)

% achieving ‘a 
higher standard’

Sefton NW England 

RWM 8 10

This is a much more challenging measure and is based scaled scores over 110 
for English and maths and teacher assessment in writing. Sefton’s figure is lower 
than the national figures.

6.5 Key LA Actions at Primary level:

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



There are a number of key actions being taken by the local authority to support 
improvement in primary schools including:

• Need to work with schools who have financial challenges as this is hampering 
their school improvement journey.

• Developing approach to attendance with schools with a view to improving 
attendance with knock on improvement in performance.

• Developing exclusions protocol to ensure consistency of approach and that 
permanent exclusion is a last resort.

• Embedding school led system of school improvement peer support. It is a 
concern that many of the weaker primary schools are not part of this system.

• Target teaching school resources towards the poorer performing schools.

7. Key Stage 4 Outcomes

7.1 There are two key measures at KS4: attainment in a suite of 8 qualifying subjects, 
and progress from starting point in these 8 subjects. The progress figure is a 
positive or negative figure against the national average which is always zero.

7.2 Attainment 8 (A8) and Progress 8 (P8)

KS4 Sefton NW England 
A8 – all 44.9 45.7 46.5 
A8 - Boys 43.0 43.0 44
A8 - Girls 47.9 48.6 49.5
A8 – disadvantaged 34.7 N/A 36.8
P8 – all -0.3 -0.16 -0.02 
P8 – Boys -0.44 -0.40 -0.25
P8 – Girls -0.07 +0.09 +0.22 
EBacc APS 3.79 4.03 
5+ in Eng & Maths 39 43
Staying in 
Education/
employment

92% N/A 94%

7.3 There is significant variation between schools with Greenbank having a P8 of 0.45 
and Savio -1.07 and Formby having an A8 score of 55 and The Hawthorne’s of 
30.1. Persistent absence rates in The Hawthorne’s are 34.3% compared with 
6.3% in Formby High and the Sefton secondary average of 13.7%.

7.4 Progress is very poor given the Sefton cohort and levels of deprivation which are 
in the bottom third within the NW. Progress for disadvantaged pupils is lower than 
for all pupils and varies significantly from school to school. Maghull -0.24 
(disadvantaged cohort is 30% of pupils) to Savio -1.42 (disadvantaged cohort is 
44% of pupils). The performance gap between boys and girls has widened since 
primary.

7.5 Absence is a problem in the poorer performing schools. Persistent absence (PA) 
(missing 10% or more) is 34% in The Hawthorne’s, 23% in Hillside and 22% in 
Litherland compared to 12% in Meols Cop. The National average for PA is 13.5% 
and the Sefton average is 13.7%.

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



7.6 Key LA actions at secondary level:

There are a number of key actions being taken by the local authority to support 
improvement in secondary schools including:

• Need to understand the support the Archdiocese is providing for catholic
• secondary schools – no good or outstanding secondary schools.
• Need to review secondary school model as all community and aided schools 

have financial problems which is hampering their school improvement journey.
• Developing approach to attendance with schools with a view to improving 

attendance with knock on improvement in performance.
• Developing exclusions protocol to ensure consistency of approach and that 

permanent exclusion is a last resort.
• Embedding school led system of school improvement peer support.

8. The School Improvement Support System in Sefton

8.1 The local authority role in school improvement is uncertain and government policy 
is for schools to have responsibility and to develop school led systems of school 
improvement and peer support. Local authority school improvement funding has 
only been provided by government until the end of the academic year. Most 
government funding will be provided directly to schools through teaching schools 
and regional school improvement hubs.

8.2 The elements of the school improvement system are:

• The development of a self- improving school system is a key aspect of 
Sefton’s school system. Sefton Council actively supports school’s autonomy 
and school to school working and support through Teaching School Alliances 
as a strategy for improvement. The Sefton school led system is in its first full 
year of operation.

• School Improvement Groups (SIGs) – made up of primary and secondary 
schools each of the 8 SIGs also has expertise from a teaching school or NLE 
plus special school and early years expertise. SIGs are made up of schools 
from different geographies, working cross-phase with a shared moral purpose 
and objective. LA provides data and analysis and clerks meetings.

• School Improvement Board (SIB) – oversees the Sefton school led school 
improvement system. Made up of reps from each SIG, LA and TSA rep with 
other stakeholders invited as required. LA provides data and analysis and 
clerks meetings. Identifies common themes/issues and commissions whole 
authority work. Links in with regional and national agenda.

• Joint Executive Board (JEB) – oversees the deployment and development of 
teaching school resource. Made up of TSAs for all phases and LA reps. LA 
reps feed in data from risk assessments and link in with SIB.

• Schools are risk assessed by officers using a variety of measures on a school 
dashboard (progress, outcomes, inspection judgement, governance, finances, 
complaints and staffing issues)

• Following risk assessment schools are targeted for resources and intervention 
through SCC Panel and may be invited to a support and challenge meeting to 
discuss concerns and plans for improvement.

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



• The LA provides/brokers support for schools on the schools causing concern 
protocol.

• Multi Academy Trusts - Head of Education and senior staff meet each year 
with MATs who have underperforming schools to discuss priorities for the 
Council, discuss concerns around performance and establish support and 
plans to improve outcomes.

• Regular meetings are held with the Archdiocese and RSC regarding 
issues/concerns over their schools.

• Nursery, Special, Primary and Secondary Heads Groups meet half termly to 
discuss sector specific issues and LA attends. LA meets with chairs termly to 
plan future strategic approach.

• Sefton Locality Working is in its infancy but provides the opportunity to link in 
with schools in geographical areas to jointly address issues.

• School Clusters – set up on a geographical basis to work on common locality 
based issues. All have a different remit which is sometimes challenging.

9 Priority Update: Priority 1, Positive Educational Experience - Reflection

9.1 Early Years and Primary outcomes are generally in-line with or exceed national 
and Regional benchmarks.  The biggest challenge is secondary outcomes at KS4 
which are lower than Regional and National benchmarks.

9.2 Within these figures there is significant geographical variation and generally those 
schools which have a higher level of pupils from disadvantaged backgrounds have 
the lowest outcomes.  

9.3 The school led improvement system in Sefton is relatively new and schools are 
still developing this way of working but there are lots of positives coming out of the 
SIG meetings.  There are some common themes across the borough for example 
as well as progress for pupils from disadvantaged backgrounds the schools with 
lowest performance tend to have high levels of absence.  The local authority 
facilitates an attendance conference attended by over 70 schools and will produce 
an attendance toolkit for schools.

9.4 School funding continues to be a challenge for a number of secondary schools 
and is undoubtedly a barrier to schools being able to invest in self-improvement.  
Despite this Holy Family High School have recently moved from RI to Good, as 
part of the OFSTED Inspection process which shows that improvements can be 
made through hard work, leadership and collaboration.

9.5 The Ofsted Inspection framework will change from September 2019 with more of 
a focus on curriculum and curriculum design.  A considerable amount of work is 
going on in schools to ensure they are ready for the change but this may affect 
inspection outcomes differently.

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 12 
June 2019

Subject: Children and Young Peoples Plan Update

Report of: Head of Children's 
Social Care

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Children, Schools and Safeguarding, Cllr John Joseph Kelly

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

The report presents to the board a summary of the current plan, the performance against 
this plan and an overview of the planned process to refresh the Children and Young 
Peoples plan for 2020 onwards. 

Recommendations:

(1) The Board note the content of the paper and note that a revised Plan will be 
presented to the Board later in 2019. 

Reasons for the Recommendations:

The Paper is for the boards information only. Performance has been received by the 
Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee in March 2019 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

Not Applicable 

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

Not applicable to this report. 

(B) Capital Costs

Not applicable to this report.

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Legal Implications:

The Health and Social Care Act 2012, Local Authority (Public Health, Health and
Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013.
Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: The Plan is a key Strategy that delivers against this core 
purpose. 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: The Plan is a key Strategy that delivers 
against this core purpose.

Commission, broker and provide core services: The Plan is a key Strategy that delivers 
against this core purpose.

Place – leadership and influencer: The Plan is a key Strategy that delivers against this 
core purpose.

Drivers of change and reform: The Plan is a key Strategy that delivers against this core 
purpose.

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD.5658/19.) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD.4782/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable. The consultation and engagement plan for the strategy development 
referenced in this report will be submitted to the Consultation and Engagement Panel in 
due course. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Vicky Buchanan/Eleanor Moulton
Telephone Number: 0151 934 3128 or 07815 804913/07779162882
Email Address: Vicky.Buchanan@sefton.gov.uk/eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

Appendix One - current operational dashboard

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



1. Introduction

1.1 The Children and Young People’s Plan is the overarching strategy that defines 
how we will deliver services to Children and Young People in Sefton. The current 
plan is a five-year plan which runs to April 2020.

1.2 This paper seeks to reflect the current objectives, the performance against these 
and an overview of activity working towards delivering a new strategy for 2020 
onwards. 

2 The Current Plan 

2.1 A Plan on a page presentation of the 2015 – 2020 Children Plan: 

3 Performance 

3.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the current operational dashboard and Members will 
note in particular that there have been performance improvements in:

 Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS), achieving a good level of
development, we are the highest in the North West (NW) and above the
regional average.

 Sefton’s Not in Employment Education or Training (NEET) group has
improved over the 3 year period, performing better than Liverpool City
Region (LCR) and staying in line with the North West.

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



 Sefton has consistently exceeded the England and North-West numbers,
for children benefitting from the ‘Two Year Old Offer’. Since the introduction
of the Two Year Old Offer in 2009, Sefton has worked in close partnership
with Health and Early Years Settings to identify and engage with the
families of rising two year olds whose families meet the criteria

 We have seen a decrease in young people being involved with Anti Social
Behaviour, one significant reason could be we have issued Gang
Injunctions along with the police, which have significantly deceased youth
Anti Social Behaviour in the Area. (80% of the cases are adults)

3.2 However there are still areas where improvement needs to be made and in
particular:

 Early Years Foundation Stage the good level of development for boys is 12
percentage points lower than for girls and there are large geographic
differences within Sefton.

 Whilst persistent absence in primary schools has reduced over time it is still
larger than the regional and national figures. There are significant
variations between schools and the worst performing primary school at Key
Stage 2 has persistent absence of 17.1%.

 Progress 8 in Sefton is lower than the regional and national averages and
is on a 3 year downward trend. Given the Sefton demographic this figure
should be significantly better. Progress 8 for girls is significantly better than
for boys but data for other groups is not yet available.

3.3 The performance report was presented previously to the Children’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in March 2019 where Members of the Committee asked 
questions/raised matters on the
following issues:-

 The good level of development (GLD) for boys at Early Years’
Foundation Stage was 12 percentage points lower than for girls,
which appeared to be a large gap.
The tendency was for a big gap in GLD between girls and boys at
early years which broadened slightly over time.
 Numbers of immunisations were decreasing.
Programmes of immunisations were commissioned by NHS
England and it was necessary to maintain promotion and target
vulnerable groups. Anti-vaccine campaigns appeared to play a part
in the decline. The Council’s Public Health Team could analyse the
issues behind the figures.
 Breastfeeding rates appeared to be performing well and work was
undertaken with Family Centres. Further information could be
provided in due course.
 The proportion of Looked After Children with dental checks could be
improved.There could be delays occurring in ensuring that checks were
accurately recorded on the system. Some children had phobias
about visiting a dentist and a lot of work was undertaken to ensure
that they attended appointments.

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



3.4 Further performance reports will continue to be presented as well as a wider
consideration of performance management across the Council over 2019/20.

4. Mid Term Review 

In March 2018 a Mid Term Review of the plan was presented to the Health and 
wellbeing Board. The reviews conclusions were: 
 

 The “Four Key Priorities” should remain.
 That some of the objectives should be amended to provide more

clarity against the outcomes and to address the gaps, changes to
legislation, in particular Children and Young People Emotional Health
and Wellbeing.

 That there should be more vigour and focus upon performance and
how this impacts upon the agreed outcomes.

 Whilst there was some good evidence of engagement with Young
People, Parents and Carers there should be a greater understanding
of how they influence change and improvement.

5. The Refresh

5.1 A full review of the plan is now underway in preparation for April 2020 as part of 
this review there will be consultation with stakeholders and the review will closely 
align with the Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy and the emerging Early Help 
strategy. The review will also consider outcomes achieved to date and next steps. 

5.2 The plan closely aligns with all 6 of the council’s core purpose and will specifically 
address, 

 Sefton’s most vulnerable are protected
 Sefton’s Children have the best start in life

5.3 The Health and Wellbeing strategy and JSNA will define the areas of activity. The 
following table displays the key milestones for the project; 

Milestone Date Measure of Success
Working Group 
Identified 

30th May 
2019

Group established and dates for 
meetings arranged. 

Draft Strategy to be 
complete

30th June 
19 

Draft prepared

Consultation and 
Engagement takes 
place 

1st July to 
30th 
September

Key stakeholders are engaged and 
begin to understand plan and their 
involvement in it. 

Amendments to 
Strategy and final 
draft 

30th 
September 
2019

Present to HWBB 
for endorsement 

4th 
December 

Sign up at a Strategic level across 
the partnership 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



2019
Launch of Strategy 
to Stakeholders 

Jan to 
March 
2020

Plan launched, desired outcomes 
understood and partnership 
understands their contribution. 

4 Conclusion 

The Board are asked to note the content of the report only.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



Please see Appendix One. 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



Priority 1 – Ensure all children and young people have a positive educational experience

1.1 EYFS (ALL): % Achieving a Good Level of 
Development

58
60
62
64
66
68
70
72
74

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

1.2 EYFS (SEN = S&E): % Achieving a Good Level of 
Development

0

1

2

3

4

5

14/15 15/16 16/17

1.3 KS2 (ALL): % Achieving Expected Standard (Test 
RWM)

0

20

40

60

80

100

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

1.4 KS2 (SEN = S&E): % Achieving Expected Standard 
(Test RWM)

0

5

10

15

20

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

1.5 KS4 (ALL): Progress 8

-0.35

-0.3

-0.25

-0.2

-0.15

-0.1

-0.05

0
15/16 16/17 17/18

1.6 KS4 (SEN = S&E): Progress 8

-1.14

-1.13

-1.12

-1.11

-1.1

-1.09

-1.08
16/17 17/18

1.7 Proportion ALL Primary Pupils Absent more than 
10%

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

1.8 Proportion ALL Secondary Pupils Absent more 
than 10%

0

5

10

15

20

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

1.9 Proportion ALL Special Schools Pupils Absent 
more than 10%

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6



1.10 Proportion of Pupils NEET - 3 month average 
(Academic age 16-17)

0

2

4

6

8

10

Jun-Aug 15 Jun-Aug 16 Jun-Aug 17 Jun-Aug 18

EYFS – Early Years Foundation Stage
NEET – Not in Education, Employment or Training
GLD – Good level of development
RWM – reading, writing, maths
KS4 – Key Stage 4
KS2 – Key Stage 2

1.1 The Good Level of Development figure is the 5th highest in the North West and above the regional average.  The figure is slightly lower than the national average 
has increased over the last 3 years. However, the Good Level Development for boys is 12 percentage points lower than for girls and there are large geographic 
differences within Sefton (highest 86.7%; lowest 41.7%)

1.2 No current data available
1.3 This figure is significantly above the regional and national averages and has increased over the last 3 years.  Progress at Key Stage 2 is also above average. 

However, there are significant variations within Sefton (highest 93%; lowest 23%) and for disadvantaged pupils (highest 100%; lowest 13%).  The gap between 
boys and girls is at its narrowest at KS2 at 4 percentage points.

1.4 No current data
1.5 Progress 8 in Sefton is lower than the regional and national averages and is on a 3 year downward trend.  Given the Sefton demographic this figure should be 

significantly better.  P8 for girls is significantly better than for boys but data for other groups is not yet available.
1.6 Pupils with Education Health Care Plans in Sefton are a more complex cohort than the average national picture, however, when pupils who receive high needs 

funding are included to make groups more directly comparable the overall P8 figure is marginally better than regional and national figures
1.7 Whilst persistent absence in primary schools has reduced over time it is still larger than the regional and national figures.  There are significant variations between 

schools and the worst performing primary school at KS2 has persistent absence of 17.1%.
1.8 Persistent absence in secondary schools is broadly in line with regional and national figures.  However, there are significant variations within Sefton and the 

lowest attaining secondary school had persistent absence of 34.3% 

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 6



Priority 2 – Ensure all children are supported to have a healthy start in life

2.1 Breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

15/16 16/17 17/18

2.2 Obesity - BMI - Reception

0.0%
2.0%
4.0%
6.0%
8.0%

10.0%
12.0%
14.0%

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

2.3 Obesity - BMI - Year 6

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

2.3 Obesity - BMI - Year 6

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

2.4 Immunisations - DTAP/IPV/HIB at 1 year old (%)

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

13/14 14/15 15/16 2016/17 2017/18

2.5 Immunisations - Hib/MenC booster at 2 years old 
(%)

89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

2.6 Proportion of Mothers Smoking at Time of 
Delivery (SATOD) - %

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

2.6 Proportion of Mothers Smoking at Time of 
Delivery (SATOD) - %

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

2.7 Hospital admissions - injuries in children aged 0-
14 (rate per 10,000 pop)

0

50

100

150

200

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

2.8 Admission episodes for alcohol-specific conditions 
- Under 18s

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

11/12 - 13/14 12/13 - 14/15 13/14 - 15/16 14/15 - 16/17

2.9 Teenage Conception Rate per 1000

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

2013 2014 2015 2016

2.9 Teenage Conception Rate per 1000

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

2013 2014 2015 2016

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



2.10 Immunisation - MMR for 2 doses at 5 years old 
(%)

82
84
86
88
90
92
94
96

13/14 14/15 15/16 2016/17 2017/18

DTAP/IPV/HIB -vaccine against diptheria, tetanus, 
pertussis (whooping cough), polio, influenza type B
Hib/ MenC – vaccine meningistis and septticaemia 
(blood poisoning)
NCMP -National child measurement programme

2.1 Breastfeeding rates made a modest improvement in 2017/18. It is too soon to say whether this will be maintained in 2018/19. Increasing breastfeeding remains a 
key priority within the delivery of the Healthy Child Programme. To support this commissioners have worked with North West Boroughs to establish a specialist 
Infant Feeding Practitioner and the peer support service Breastfeeding Support Sefton. The focus of the last 12 months has been the restoration of the UNICEF Baby 
Friendly Initiative across the borough. This involves training and mobilising staff across NHS, children centres and voluntary groups to promote breastfeeding. Peer 
support has delivered antenatal interventions, group work, one-to-one consultations and support through social media channels.
Achievement of BFI status has been boosted by the NHS Long Term plan declaration that all NHS maternity units who do not already have such accreditation will begin 
the process in 2019/20.

2.2 NCMP The National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) is delivered annually across Sefton schools for reception aged children (YR) and year 6 (Y6).  Screening is 
carried outby 0-19 school health and the results contribute to population level surveillance data to allow analysis in patterns of obesity. Locally, the results inform 
planning and delivery of health improvement service for children in Sefton.

NCMP Results for 2017/18  
The latest NCMP results for Sefton (2017/18) show that rates of overweight children in YR have remained static (14.6%), and rates of obesity have reduced slightly 
(10.2%) compared with 10.7% the previous year. 

2.3 In contrast, the rate of overweight children at Year 6 has increased (15.1%) compared to 13.6% in 2016/17.  Rates of obesity amongst Year 6 children have also increased 
(21.3%) compared to 20.7%  in 12016/17. 
Data from the last decade would suggest that YR obesity rates have fallen slightly overall and that Y6 rates may be starting to increase again after initially stabilising.
Sefton’s rates of obese children generally increased with increasing deprivation. Y6 obesity rates in the most deprived quintile (27.1%) were almost double that of 
children living in the least deprived quintile (14.3%). If rates of overweight are, this increases to 41% of children living the most deprived quintile being classified as 
overweight or obese. 

In Response

A range of approaches are required across the whole system to prevent, manage and treat overweight and obesity. Public Health lead is driving a number of work 
programmes that contribute to an obesity plan for Sefton.

 Healthy Weight Declaration
 Planning Guidance for hot food takeaways. 

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 6



 Development of Obesity Training for staff
 Development of an Obesity Toolkit to support staff
 0-19 Active Schools Offer
 MECC
 Workplace Wellbeing Charter
 Obesity Trailblazer Bid.

2.4 DTAP/IPV/Hib coverage at 1 year:  There is a slight increase in the proportion of infants receiving their DTAP/IPV/HIB vaccination at one year compared to the previous 
12 months, however this indicator is still just below the 95% coverage target, which is required for herd immunity.  Sefton continues to perform better that the England 
and North West (NW) and similarly to the Liverpool City Region (LCR) though there has been a general downward trend since 2013/14,  a pattern mirrored across the 
LCR, NW region and nationally. 

2.5 Hib/Men C booster coverage at 2 years: There is a very small decrease in coverage compared with last year, whilst Sefton continues to be above the England average, it 
continues to be slightly below the North West (NW) regional average and the Liverpool City Region (LCR) average. Similarly to the LCR, NW region and England, the 
coverage rates are just  below the 95% coverage required to achieve herd immunity. There has been a downward trend for coverage since 2013/14,  and this is mirrored 
across the LCR, NW region and nationally.

2.6 Smoking in pregnancy is a public health priority and contributory factor for Stillbirth and pregnancy complications. Smoking at time of Delivery (SATOD) is the measure 
used to describe how many women smoke in pregnancy. The SATOD rate (Q2 2018) for Southport & Formby CCG is 8.4 % and 14.8% for South Sefton CCG. The rate for 
Cheshire & Merseyside is12.7% and England is 10.7%. SSCCG rate has the 4th highest rate amongst NWCGs. Smoking in pregnancy rates are highest amongst women 
from disadvantaged backgrounds and disproportionately for younger women.
System-wide improvement in smoking in pregnancy is particularly challenging in Sefton, notably South Sefton because of the overlapping geographies between 
commissioners and providers of maternity and stop smoking services. Information provided by; CCG support & business intelligence service, show that 54% of women 
deliver in Liverpool Women’s Hospital (LWH) – who are commissioned by Liverpool CCG. 40% of women deliver in Ormskirk – who are commissioned by Sefton CCG, 3 % 
deliver elsewhere and 2% deliver at home. The majority of women who reside is South Sefton regardless of what hospital they have ‘booked’ into, will have their 
community care provided by community midwives from LWH.
Sefton are contributing to a Cheshire and Merseyside LMS smoking in pregnancy action plan. Locally, this will include smoking cessation training for midwives and 0-19 
team professionals, and possible implementation of ‘BabyCLeaR’ risk perception practice in some settings. Public Health has also commissioned a smoking in pregnancy 
Midwife for the Ormskirk Maternity unit, with the aim of driving this agenda forward.
Public Health is prioritising discussions with LWH’s and Liverpool CCG to develop a more robust offer for South Sefton women.

2.7 It is difficult to comment on this figure without understanding the breakdown by age and reason for admission. Public Health are currently working with Sefton CCG and 
NHS providers to promote prevention and early intervention to reduce admissions. This includes early years contacts promoting accident prevention programmes and 
help and treatment in a community setting

2.8 Sefton has a hospital admissions rate for alcohol specific conditions – under 18s which is worse than the national average but similar to the rate in the North West of 
England. While continuing to be higher than average the trend in Sefton has been downward in recent years. 
Alcohol consumption is a contributing factor to hospital admissions and deaths from a diverse range of conditions. Admissions to hospital for under 18s are calculated at 
a rate per 100,000 population and defined as admissions under 18 years where the primary diagnosis or any of the secondary diagnoses are alcohol specific.
Targeting effective responses to reducing this rate can be difficult within such a broad definition and Sefton services need to work closer with Hospital Trusts and CCGs 
in order to better understand factors underlying these admissions.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton’s Young People and Family Substance Use Service continue to work with health and social care partners to increase awareness of the risk associated with alcohol 
and other drug use and reduce those risks through education and early intervention. The service is forging links with Alder Hey Hospital to ensure appropriate referral 
pathways are in place and has recently introduced the Amy Whinehouse Project (an alcohol and other drugs awareness project for schools and young people) in Sefton.
Sefton Young People and Family Substance Use Service continue to work with families on breaking intergenerational patterns of alcohol and other 
substance use and promote a range of system wide evidence based interventions. 
Future service plans include developing closer working relations with hospital based and 0-19 services in Sefton to better understand and respond to factors 
contributing to the higher than average rates of under 18 year old alcohol related hospital admissions.
2.9 National and Regional under 18 conception rates have reduced significantly since the implementation of the National Teenage Pregnancy Strategy in 1999. 
In comparison to other parts of Merseyside, Sefton’s overall rates of teenage pregnancy are low as detailed below. However, there is considerable variation within 
Sefton and those levels of variation need to be better understood so that an effective response can be formed.
The aim of this event was to consider progress and to date and to share examples of good practice. To identify potential gaps and variation in performance, to promote 
meaningful discussion and to inform the development of new Teenage Pregnancy Plans for Sefton and Knowsley Local Authorities. 
A total of 75 delegates attended the event, 24 delegates represented services and professional interest groups in Sefton and more encouragingly all delegates stayed for 
the entire event and remained fully engaged with discussion throughout the day.
There were 94 conceptions to under 18s in Sefton during 2016, a rate of 20.9 per 1,000 females aged 15 – 17. The rate in Sefton is the lowest in Merseyside and not 
significantly different to England (18.8) or the North West (22.3) 

2.10 MMR proportion of children who have received 2 doses by their 5th birthday: In Sefton there is a fall in coverage in 2017/18 compared to the previous year, with 
coverage in Sefton being similar to the England average but below the Liverpool City Region (LCR) and North West (NW) regional averages. There does not appear to be 
an obvious trend pattern on uptake for this vaccination, locally, within the LCR and NW regions or Nationally, and coverage continues to fall short of the 95% coverage 
required for herd immunity. Additionally, there have been a number of National, Regional and LCR outbreaks of Measles in recent years and within affected areas this 
may have led to an increase in coverage, through catch-up immunisations after a child 5th birthday and this would not be captured within this indicator.
Childhood vaccinations are commissioned by NHS England and, in these instances, are delivered through General Practice. Improving vaccination rates to herd immunity 
levels is a key target for the local NHS England and the Public Health England Screening and Immunisation team,  who provide monitoring and assurance for the 
childhood vaccination programmes.  Herd immunity refers to a level of immunisation within the population which will stop the spread of a disease within the 
community,  thus preventing outbreaks. Within Sefton the Local Authority Public Health Team supports the CCGs and the Public Health England Screening and 
Immunisations team to develop an annual workplan which includes supporting General Practices through practice visits and the development of  bespoke action plans to 
address unwarranted variation in uptake rates, this may be effective at tackling poor uptake related to access and local knowledge and understanding of the 
programme. However, there is evidence of broader issues relating to parental perceptions of the childhood vaccination programme, illustrated though the overall 
downward trend in uptake across England. This is being pursued at a National level by NHS England and Public Health England, and is addressed in the campaign 
material and ‘myth busting’ information provided to parents.

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 6



Priority 3 – Improving the quality of life of children with additional needs and vulnerabilities

3.1 Rate of Children Looked After (CLA) per 10k pop

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

3.2 Rate of CPP per 10k pop

0

20

40

60

80

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

3.3 Rate of Open Early Help Episodes per 10k pop

0

100

200

300

400

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

3.4 Rate per 10,000 of Excluded Children

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

14/15 15/16 16/17

3.5 Proportion of CLA with Dental Checks

0

20

40

60

80

100

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

3.6 % of CLA Achieving a Expected Standard in 
Reading, Writing & Maths at KS2

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

2016 2017

3.7 % of CLA Achieving a Expected Standard in English 
and Maths at KS4

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

2017

3.8 Care Leavers NEET

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

3.9 CLA Pledge Survey - Get enough support at School 
aged 5-9 (%)

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 6



3.10 CLA Pledge Survey - Get enough support at 
School Aged 10+ (%)

0

20

40

60

80

100

2015 2016 2017 2018

CLA – Children looked after
NEET – Not in Employment, Eduction or Training
LCR – Liverpool City Region
NW North West

3.6 & 3.7 Looked after children’s performance is below that of all children. From 2016 to 2017, there was a small increase in the number of pupils who achieved the 
expected level at the end of key stage 2. In line with looked after children nationally results at key stage 4 continue to be disappointing compared to the performance 
of all pupils, however Sefton’s attainment is just above the north west and national figures.  This reflects the higher level of need and the early adverse experiences 
that may have impacted their individual development.
3.8 Sefton’s NEET group has improved over the 3 year period, performing better than LCR and staying in line with the NW. When however, looking at the comparable 
figures with England, then improvements continue to be required
3.9 & 3.10 This question measures how well supported our looked after children and young people feel at school.  As evidenced there was a decrease in the 5-9yrs 
cohort in 2017 in comparison to responses received in 2015 and 2016.  Responses have, however, slightly increased in 2018

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 6



Priority 4 – Ensure positive emotional health and wellbeing

4.1 Percentage of children in Low Income Families

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2012 2013 2014 2015

4.2 Percentage of 2 year old children benefitting from 
funded early education

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2015 2016 2017 2018

4.3 % CYP with a diagnosable mental health condition receiving 
treatment from NHS funded community services

0

1

2

3

4

5

Q4 16/17 Q1 17/18 Q2 17/18

4.4 Proportion of pupils with 
social/emotional/mental health needs

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

2015 2016 2017 2018

4.5 Self-harm hospital admission (10-24 yr olds) - rate 
per 100,000 pop

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

4.6 Percentage of 10-17 Year Olds Offending

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

4.7 Youth Qualifier Antisocial Behaviour per 1k pop

0

20

40

60

80

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

4.8 CLA Pledge Survey - feel safe and cared for aged 5-
9 (%)

90

92

94

96

98

100

102

2015 2016 2017 2018

4.9 CLA Pledge Survey - feel safe and cared for aged 
10+ (%)

95

96

97

98

99

100

2015 2016 2017 2018

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 6



4.2 Sefton has consistently exceeded the England and North West numbers, for children benefitting from the ‘Two Year Old Offer’, by a significant margin. Since the 
introduction of the Two Year Old Offer in 2009, Sefton has worked in close partnership with Health and Early Years Settings to identify and engage with the families of 
rising two year olds whose families meet the criteria. Families have been involved in a home visiting and transition programme, supporting them to access provision. 
In addition to this, there have been planned Speech and Language interventions to accelerate progress where needs have been identified.
4.6 The percentage of the 10-17 population has reduced over the past four years across all sectors. In 2017/18 the proportion of young people offending in Sefton is 
level with the proportion offending across England the North West. Reducing first time entrants by using out of court disposals, which provide support and 
interventions to young people without the need for convictions has had an impact in this reduction
4.7 We have seen a decrease in young people being involved with ASB, one significant reason could be we have issued Gang Injunctions along with the police, which 
have significantly deceased youth ASB in the Area. (80% of the cases are adults)
4.8 & 4.9 This question measures how safe and cared for our looked after children and young people feel in their current placement.  The variant year on year consists 
of one or two responses only.  Overall, our looked after chilren and young people tell us that they feel safe and cared for in their current placement.

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 6



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 12 
June 2019

Subject: Better Care Fund Update

Report of: Chief Executive Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

This paper is to inform the Board of the impact of the Better Care Fund in 2018/19, 
current review activity and to await a further plan for 2019/20 and beyond. 

Recommendations:

(1) For information only at this stage 

Reasons for the Recommendations:

The paper is to bring the board up to date on activity under the Better Care Fund. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

Not applicable.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

Subject to audit of accounts, 2018/19 revenue expenditure in the Better Care Fund was 
£34.827m. Figures for the 2019/20 budget will be confirmed at a later date.

(B) Capital Costs

Subject to audit of accounts, capital spend from the Disabled Facilities Grant element of 
the Better Care Fund in 2018/19 totalled £1.754m. Figures for the 2019/20 budget will be 
confirmed at a later date. 

Implications of the Proposals:

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Not applicable at this time. 
Legal Implications:

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:

Commission, broker and provide core services: Commissioned and provider services 
operate under the Better Care Fund 

Place – leadership and influencer:

Drivers of change and reform: The Better Care Fund is the driver for  person centred 
integrated care. 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5646/19) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD4770/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

Not Applicable.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Eleanor Moulton
Telephone Number: 07779162882
Email Address: eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

2019 -20 Better Care Fund Policy Framework – April 2019.

Shifting the Centre of Gravity – Making Place Based Person Centred Health and Care a 
Reality – October 2018 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



1. Introduction

a. This report is to inform the board of the evaluation of activity under the Better 
Care Fund in 2018/19 and plans to build on successful outcomes for delivery 
in 2019/20. 

b. The paper will take the board through background to the Better Care Fund 
Framework, and national guidance on its use, the outcomes  reported at the 
end of Quarter 4 of 2018/19 and the next steps for ensuring the potential of the 
scheme is maximised to help the people of Sefton meet their Health and Social 
Care outcomes. 

2. Background

a. The Better Care Fund Policy Framework for 2019 -20 was published in April 
2019. The Government is committed to the aim of person-centred integrated 
care with health, social care, housing and other public services working 
seamlessly together to provide better care. The focus being on preventing ill-
health, avoiding unnecessary hospital admissions, ensuring high quality care 
and support. This meaning people who need health and social care only 
having to tell their story once, getting a clear and comprehensive assessment 
of need and getting the right care, in the right place, at the right time. 

b. Since 2015 these aims have been channelled through the Better Care Fund 
(BCF). The plans produced are owned by the Health and Wellbeing Board, 
representing a single, local plan. Since 2017, the specific focus to reduce 
delays and free up beds has been supported by the targeted improved Better 
Care Fund (iBCF). 

2.3 ‘Shifting the Centre of Gravity’ is a joint vision for transforming Health, Care 
and Wellbeing of the Association of Directors of Adults Social Care, Local 
Government Association, Association of Directors of Public Health, NHS 
Clinical Commissioners, NHS Federation, and NHS Providers. It was 
published in October 2018. Following its review of previous impacts of working 
in an integrated way it identified several required shifts that need to deliver 
effective health, care and wellbeing transformation into the future;

• A person-centred approach that delivers care and support in partnership with
individuals and, where they wish, their families and communities, to achieve
the best outcomes for them, rather than designing systems and processes 
around organisational silos.
• A place-based approach that involves all partners collaborating to improve 
health and wellbeing, rather than a focus on separate organisations and 
structures.
• A model of care and support that promotes health and wellbeing, 
independence, community support and self-care in or close to people’s homes, 
to reduce the need for unplanned hospital admissions
and long-term residential care.

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



• A shift to prevention to improve population health and wellbeing, to reduce 
the overall need for care and support, rather than a reliance on providing 
services to meet health and care needs.
• Better alignment between nationally set targets and the priorities identified by 
local partners.
• Equality between the NHS and local government in planning the future of 
health, care and wellbeing, with decisions taken collaboratively from the 
earliest stage.
• A better balance between responding to short-term pressures while still 
maintaining the focus on longer-term transformation.

The report identifies the key actions for the Council and CCG’s  as Health and 
Care partners are; to ensure:
 there is a comprehensive lined up vision, 
best use of  assets is sought,
 measurable indicators of success are derived,
skills and expertise of staff are utilised,
 shared outcomes that are person centred are developed,
 inequalities are tackled and poor health prevented and leadership and 
accountability is shared. 

3. Outcomes of the Better Care Fund in 2018/19 

Highlights reported in the final quarter of the last financial year were; 

Progress has been made in a number of key areas such as the further 
implementation and embedding of ICRAS across Sefton and across wider 
strategic footprint, the further delivery of the Newton Europe action plans 
through collaborative partnerships and the development of work programmes 
under the Better Care Fund themes in key priority areas such as social 
prescribing, mental health and Learning Disabilities, Continuing Health Care, 
Children, reablement and care homes.  Of particular note is the extent of 
progress following the MADE reviews (Managing hospitals flow through Multi-
Disciplinary teams), regarding Trusted Assessors, the weekly system-wide 
calls to problem-solve and the development of integrated pathways to support 
reablement/rehabilitation in key care homes such as James Dixon Court and 
Chase Heys.  Regarding Children, progress has been made in relation to the 
safeguarding action plan, enhanced commissioning of the neuro-
developmental pathway, and a system-wide leadership summit on Children's 
services, which is a key area within the refreshed Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment. Sefton Council and the CCGs are also working together on the 
refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and held a joint event to engage 
with key stakeholders on its development and to signal joint working on the 5 
year partnership plan for Sefton.

Wider integration around the Better Care Fund has seen developments also. 
The pilot work for Integrated Care Teams is also underway. During the last 
quarter activity in the South of the borough has included the commencement of 
two dedicated Primary Care, Social Care Link Workers who will work across 
four health localities. This pilot work is being scoped further in terms of 
monitoring. Agreement has also been gained in the North which has meant an 
additional Primary Care Link Worker has also been identified.  Work on the 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



Sefton Health and Care Partnership Transformation Programme has 
continued, with plans to strengthen the role of the Integrated Commissioning 
Group as part of a governance review and further development of the Provider 
Alliance. 

Over the last quarter the Adult Social Care and Health have agreed the role 
and remit of the workers and the pilot commenced in Quarter 4.  In terms of 
social work staff being on the ground and part of the Multi-Disciplinary Teams. 
The work in the north will follow shortly after this. 

Primary care link workers are qualified social workers who will link to a group 
of GP practices in a locality as part of a multi- disciplinary team they will work 
with a cohort of patients who are most likely to be at risk of unplanned hospital 
admission or patients who with early intervention can maintain independence 
and so delay the need for formal social care provision or costly care packages.

They will be able to self-allocate, prioritise their work based on the stratification 
of high risk patients and work collaboratively with the team around the primary 
care network.

Of particular note in quarter 4 has been the work undertaken to support High 
Impact Change Models, change 4, with the development of enablement beds 
to support step down and bridging the gap between hospital and home and the 
opportunity to test our model of care during the winter period using winter 
pressures funding and  will inform decisions about how we use the BCF in the 
future. Work has been carried out in both North and South Sefton to create 
enhanced community provision which complements our existing intermediate 
care beds and enables timely discharge from hospital. Next stage of work will 
enable step up from community for those in crisis or requiring short stay care 
for enablement purposes. The project was particularly successful in 
strengthening partnership working between health and social care 
commissioners with engagement of acute, community, primary care and local 
authority along with third sector reablement providers. Collaborative working 
has helped to develop a pathway which recognises the essential input from the 
different partners to provide holistic care to the service user. Early 19/20 the 
focus will be on ensuring the pathway is robustly implemented with 
adjustments where required with monitoring and review processes established 
to allow a review of the impact for the system in alleviating pressures and 
quality outcomes for service users. 

It is notable that all High Impact Change model plans are established or 
mature. These plans are designed to support avoiding admission and ensuring 
people flow hospital as quickly as possible. 

They will be creative in use of resources and promote the value of prevention 
at locality level. It is anticipated that 60% of a link worker capacity will be 
working on individual cases / rapid response and ICRAS and 40% attending 
meetings/ developing new ways of working with Council locality teams and the 
wider health system operational leadership teams.

The link worker model will be evaluated throughout the 12 month proof of 
concept programme and will inform a future model of integrated working.

Page 56

Agenda Item 7



Expenditure in the Better Care Fund in 2018/19
,
The revenue expenditure in the pool in 2018/19 was £34.827m. Capital 
expenditure from the Disabled Facilities Grant element of the pool totalled 
£1.754m. The expenditure was incurred across the various  Better Care Fund 
themes outlined in the table below

£m
Integrated Community Care 7.769
Long Term Care 8.332
Intermediate Care and Reablement 8.532
Early Years 0.923
Early Intervention and Prevention 0.070
Improved Better Care Fund 10.955
Total 36.581

4. The Better Care Fund in 2019/20 

a. Reporting: 

The Better Care Fund in 2019-20 will retain the same National Conditions as in 
2017-19. Areas will be required to set out how the national conditions will be 
met in jointly agreed BCF plans signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
The program is being reviewed any major changes will be from 2020 onwards. 
The plans are required to align to any local Strategic Transformation plans that 
the Health and Wellbeing Board must sign off. 

The four national metrics are: Plans are jointly agreed, NHS contribution to 
adult social care to be maintained in line with the uplift to CCG Minimum 
Contribution, Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out-of-hospital 
services, which may include 7 day services and adult social care, Managing 
Transfers of Care. 

The Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) has stripped back reporting 
requirements. Details of average amounts that were paid to external providers 
for care in 2018/19 and what is expected to be paid in 2019/20 must be 
returned in Quarter 2. In Quarter 4 details of proportion of additional iBCF 
funding for 2019/20 will be allocated to the purpose of funding. There will be an 
assessment of impact of funding on: Number of Home Care Packages and 
hours of Care and numbers of Care Home Placements. 

b. Development opportunities in 2019/20 for Integration and our pooled 
budgets 

Within this year a key priority will be to review existing integrated work plans 
previously agreed by the Integrated Commissioning Group for 2018/19 as: 

Early Intervention and 
Prevention (focus on 

Mapping of current approaches commissioned 
across the system in relation to health 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



lifestyle factors) promotion and signposting. Identification of 
opportunities to better commission jointly or co-
ordinate. 
Develop plans for joint approach in relation to 
obesity for 19/20

0-19 Ensure the ICG gets regular reports from the 
Children’s sub-group. Identification of 2 areas to 
focus on for 18/19.

Consideration of a proposal for a system side 
workshop for the Autumn

Integrated Community Care Agreed collaborative commissioning approach 
to Mental Health and Learning Disability, with 
view to formalising pooled budget 
arrangements in 2019/20. July’s meeting to 
have extended membership to have a strategic 
focus on mental health and Learning Disability
Ensure reporting to and from Sefton 
Transformation / Provider forum on 
development of integrated approaches in 
localities

Longer Term Care Agree joint approach to quality in care homes. 
Effective utilisation of new posts to co-ordinate 
quality approach across CCG and Council. Plan 
for joint commissioning of beds in 2019/20

Ensure progress and exception reports from the 
new CHC Collaborative Group

Intermediate Care and 
Reablement:

Review of Reablement service to improve 
effectiveness and support improvements in 
Delayed Transfers of Care 
Ensure reports back on ICRAS developments 
and progress from steering group

At the last Integrated Commissioning Group both the CCG and the Council 
committed to reviewing work programmes and proposing a more ambitious 
and further reaching pooled budget. Internal discussions have begun and a 
planned joint session as part of the Integrated Commissioning group is also to 
be held. 

c. Governance of the Better Care Fund 

Within the current signed section 75 agreement the Council and the CCGs 
have agreed to establish and constitute a collaboration within these terms of 
reference to be known as the (Health and Wellbeing) Executive group. This 
group should provide ongoing governance to the Better Care Fund In relation 
to priorities/schemes/projects it will:

• Provide strategic direction on the schemes 
• Receive the financial and activity information

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



• Review the operation of this agreement 
• Review the performance of the schemes 
• Agree such variations to this agreement from time to time as it sees fit 
• Review and agree risk assessment on a regular basis (at every monthly 

meeting) 
• Review and agree annually revised schedules as necessary 
• Reports to the Health and Wellbeing Board progress

In 2019/20 we will ensure this group is fully utilised to maximise this with a full 
report coming to the next meeting on the 6th June. 

The Mersey Internal Audit Authority in 2016/17 conducted a review of the BCF 
and although some progress was made on the actions there is an opportunity 
to go further as part of the work programme review. 

5. Conclusion

The Better Care Fund has worked well in the Sefton area but there is far 
greater potential to expand the ability to better meet the outcomes of the 
residents of Sefton and a current appetite to do so. 

Following a review of the governance, best practice and priorities, a new work 
plan will be produced for the Boards consideration at its next scheduled 
meeting in September 2019. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 12 
June 2019

Subject: Refresh of Sefton's Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Proposed 
Consultation and Engagement

Report of: Director of Public 
Health

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

The purpose of this report is to brief the Health and Wellbeing Board on plans for the 
consultation and engagement on the refresh of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA) and the Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Recommendations:

(1) Members of the Board are recommended to note the plans that have been put in 
place for the consultation and engagement process on the revised JSNA and the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Reasons for the Recommendations:

Under the Health and Social Care Act (2012) Health and Wellbeing Boards are required 
to develop and publish a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. This is a specific duty on 
the Local Authority and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). It is a legal requirement 
to involve local Healthwatch to ensure that the needs of community stakeholders are 
captured and used to shape the final strategy. There is a clear expectation that 
engagement should be inclusive, with additional care and attention towards removing 
barriers and enabling input from more vulnerable groups and individuals.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

There are no alternative options as the Health and Wellbeing Board is required to publish 
a Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

There are no additional costs resulting from this report 

(B) Capital Costs

Not applicable

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

There is no additional financial resource for this work. Designated Officer support in the 
Council comes from Strategic Support and Engagement, Public Health and Social Care.

Legal Implications:

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: Helps reflect needs of communities and 
influence service design to meet these. 

Commission, broker and provide core services: Provide basis for commissioning and 
delivery of service to meet need. 

Place – leadership and influencer:

Drivers of change and reform:

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5647/19) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD4771/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

The Plans for the refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and consultation and 
engagement process have been shared with the Public Engagement and Consultation 
Panel.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting.

Contact Officer: Matthew Ashton
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 4080
Email Address: matthew.ashton@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

Consultation and Engagement Panel Paper - 17/05/2019 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



1. Introduction

1.1 Sefton’s first five-year Health and Wellbeing Strategy was created in 2013 and 
subsequently updated to reflect the update of the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) in 2014. 

1.2 The first Health and Wellbeing Strategy was developed following an extensive 
consultation and engagement process that involved local people, stakeholders 
and partners and resulted in the final strategy being informed by the consultation 
responses.  

1.3 As the priorities identified in the refresh of the JSNA in 2014 had changed very 
little, and as there had been a number of large scale consultations undertaken in 
that year, it was considered appropriate to use the views already collected to 
refresh the existing Strategy.  The existing Strategy is due to end in 2020.

1.4 A refreshed JSNA was published in November 2018 and this has already been 
presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board which has agreed to publish a 
refreshed, Five-year Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy in January 2020.

2. Progress and proposals

3.1   A sub-group of the Health and Wellbeing Board has been convened to oversee 
the development of the refreshed Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The group is 
chaired by Director of Public Health and core membership comprises officers from 
Public Health, Social Care, and Strategic Support; representatives from Sefton 
CCGs, Healthwatch and CVS.

3.2 The group has developed plans for the consultation and engagement process to 
support the refresh of the Strategy and this has been presented to and approved 
by the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel in March 2019.

3.2 The current timeline of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy development process 
has been established as follows:

12th June 2019 Update to Health and Wellbeing Board

June – August 2019 Public Consultation and Engagement 

September 2019 Initial consultation report and draft strategy, together 
with draft Equality Impact Assessment, presented to 
Health and Wellbeing Board on 11th September 
followed by a further short period of public 
engagement approximately four weeks further public 
engagement on the draft strategy

January 2020 Draft Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025 
presented to Board for approval, together with final 
version of consultation report, and equality impact 
assessment

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



3. Activity to date

3.1 Milestones achieved so far include, 

 Submission of a detailed engagement proposal to the Consultation and 
Engagement Panel in March, with a second discussion at panel in May to gain 
feedback on an initial draft of the questionnaire,

 Participation in a strategic stakeholder event in April centred on the themes of 
population health priorities and collaborative working,

3.2 These activities have delivered helpful insights that have shaped thinking about 
the content, structure and language for the refreshed Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, notably proposals for:

 A revised vision that aligns to the Sefton 2030 Vision

 An overarching aim to narrow inequalities and improve health for all 

 A ‘life-course’ perspective and structure: ‘Start and Learn Well; Live and Work 
Well; Age and Die Well’ 

 Cross-cutting emphasis on prevention, emotional wellbeing, socio-economic 
and other inequalities of health

 Promoting a positive concept of health reflecting the contributions of four 
building blocks:  wider determinants, our places and communities, health 
behaviours and risk factors, and health and care services. 

 Preference for simplified, more accessible language. The current Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy is shaped around a vision, four strategic priorities, 6 
objectives, 30 outcomes and 20 promises. 

 It is proposed to agree selected 5-year Ambitions that build on our current 
strategic objectives. These would focus attention on the critical changes that 
need to happen in childhood, adulthood and older age to really improvehealth 
and wellbeing for the whole population, and particularly for vulnerable 
communities and groups with most to gain. 

 A more narrative style, which directly links each ambition to underpinning 
evidence of needs, strengths and opportunities from across the JSNA and from 
stakeholder engagement. This format will tell the story of the diverse but 
interconnected influences and experiences that shape people’s life chances, 
and how these work for and against health and wellbeing.

 A clear statement of shared principles, values and expectation, for example:-

o enabling strong connections between the building blocks of health 
wherever we can, 

o supporting the fundamentals of wellbeing in everything we do – being 
safe, secure, supported, and feeling confident, capable, valued and 
unique in what we have to offer

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



o speaking up and taking action when opportunities to choose health are 
most limited and unequal, 

o asking ourselves and our communities, ‘what works? And what needs to 
change?’ and doing it together; working creatively with all the assets 
Sefton has to offer through its people and as a place

 Statement on how the strategy functions to turn ambitions into tangible changes

 Statement on the role of the Health and Wellbeing Board, Governance and 
monitoring  

4. Proposals for Consultation and Engagement 

4.1 Engagement to inform and develop the HWBS will comprise two phases:-

 Phase one 

Phase one will focus on the big issues, both health and health-related that are 
evidenced in the JSNA chapters.  This phase will run from June through August.

The purpose of this public engagement is primarily to ‘sense-check’ whether these 
big issues tally with people’s own experiences and to identify any that have been 
missed and which residents feel we should address in the new Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy.
.
The engagement process is designed to make best use of Sefton’s strong 
networks and partnerships, and to enable partners and stakeholders to easily 
present their views and  enable others to do so.

The primary engagement tool is an online questionnaire.  A easy read workbook 
will be used to engage with people with learning difficulties as this was used 
successfully in 2014 together with information in other formats to enable the 
engagement of those with other needs.   A Powerpoint presentation and group 
feedback form will also be promoted as another option for contributing feedback. 

It is proposed to hold focus groups with key stakeholders in each locality with the 
aim of gathering direct feedback and showing attendees how they can download 
and use resources to promote and host their own engagement activities.

 Phase two

Phase two is a shorter period of consultation of around four weeks in September-
October. The purpose of this public engagement is to represent how insights and 
feedback from phase one have shaped the draft Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
and to gather wide-ranging views on the key ambitions, language, relevance, and 
meaning conveyed in the strategy (and easy-read strategy) as a whole.

4.2 Additional focus groups

It is proposed to hold focussed consultation sessions for those groups who may 
need additional support to give their views, and in particular those groups who 
have protected characteristics.

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



4.3 Communications Plan

Communications colleagues have been briefed about the aims and activities 
associated with the refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  A range of 
communications channels will be used to connect with different groups.  Two 
specific priorities have been identified: 

a. To ensure that particular effort is directed towards reaching people groups with 
protected characteristics under the Equality Act (2010), and with groups who 
need additional support to ensure their voices are heard, for example children, 
children and adults with cognitive impairment or learning disability, and people 
with mental health conditions. 

b. To develop and deploy a set of key messages about what the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy is, and the purpose of engagement activity. This is 
especially important since engagement on the NHS Long Term Plan in Sefton 
is scheduled to take place over the same time period, and will also involve 
Sefton Healthwatch as a key engagement partner.

5.Conclusion 

The consultation proposals have been approved by the Communication and 
Engagement panel at their meeting on the 17th May 2019. Members of the Board 
are recommended to note the plans that have been put in place to refresh the 
Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy and for the consultation and engagement 
process.

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
Date: 17th May 2019

Title: Sefton’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025 and Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment – Consultation and Engagement 
Update

Report of: Helen Armitage  - Public Health Consultant (07816066317 -
helen.armitage@sefton.gov.uk)
June McGill, Strategic Support Officer (0151 934 4604)

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To update Members of the Panel and seek additional feedback with 
regard to the consultation and engagement process for the refresh of 
the Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025.   

2. Background

2.1 At its meeting on 15th March 2019 the Panel considered the 
consultation and engagement proposals for the refresh of the Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy including the methodology, the proposed 
stakeholders and timetable.

2.2 The Panel agreed the proposal but requested that the proposed 
questions be brought to the Panel in May.

2.3 Section 3 below summarises:-

a) how our Strategy and engagement proposal has further developed 
since March, building on the insights from a stakeholder 
engagement event and discussions at the Health and Wellbeing 
Board Sub-Group.

b) Proposed changes to the eventual presentation of the strategy 
document to further improve accessibility and impact and what 
this means for our engagement plans

2.4 Section 4 sets below out:

a) More detailed proposals for the questionnaire content, 
engagement strategy and timelines 

b) A request for panel feedback on the inclusion of prioritisation 
questions and additional questions (4.4)

Page 69

Agenda Item 8

mailto:helen.armitage@sefton.gov.uk


3. Refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy – progress and 
developments

3.1 A large stakeholder event took place on April 10th. A broad range of 
leaders received presentations and participated in facilitated 
discussions on the themes of population health priorities and 
collaborative working. 

3.2 This was a valuable opportunity to gather feedback on the JSNA 
priorities proposed in the published JSNA 2018 Highlights document. 
Recurrent themes included;

 Children and young people - need to develop whole family 
approaches to address wellbeing, personal strengths and growth 
and socio-economic challenges

 Social and wider determinants of health - feedback recognised 
the impact of anti-social behaviour, crime, in-work and out of work 
poverty and debt, risk factors for isolation and loneliness

 Mental health and wellbeing, highlighting the strong two-way 
links to chronic physical health problems, unhealthy behaviours, 
isolation and the need for a system that supports the individual

 People with complex needs - the extent of collaborative working 
that is needed; approaches that enable autonomy, self-care and 
independence seen as key

 Ageing well - prevention and management of frailty was 
highlighted as an important need. ‘Dying well’ was a theme that 
contributors wanted to see recognised in a Life Course approach

3.3 As a result of these key insights we now propose to,

 Adopt a Life Course Framework based on Start Well, Live Well, 
Age Well 

 Include cross-cutting themes summarised as,

o Prevention in everything we do

o Mental wellbeing is the bedrock of better health

o Specific action to narrow health inequalities is essential

To note, a very positive insight from the stakeholder event 
highlighted the need to look beyond spatial, socio-economic 
health inequalities and also address poor health outcomes in 
other groups e.g. asylum seeker and refugee community, people 
with learning disability, people who are LGBT, ex-offenders, and 
people with mental health conditions. This reinforces feedback 
already provided by the panel in March on this issue and 
implications for our engagement strategy.

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



3.2 The current Health and Wellbeing Strategy is shaped around a vision, 
four strategic priorities, 6 objectives, 30 outcomes and 20 promises. 
The HWBS sub-group has reviewed the statutory context and purpose 
of the JSNA and HWBS, the current and alternative formats, and 
policy guidance. 

This reflective review has led the sub-group to explore a simplified use 
of language coupled to a stronger narrative from the JSNA on assets, 
strengths and needs. The proposed structure will comprise:

 A revised vision that aligns to the Sefton 2030 Vision
 An overarching aim to improve health for all and narrow 

inequalities
 Selected 5-year ambitions, that build on our current strategic 

objectives grouped across the life course and tied into evidence of 
strengths, needs and opportunities for change

 A positive concept of health centred on its four building blocks: 
social and wider determinants, our places and communities, 
health behaviours and risk factors, health and care services

 Principles and values, including public involvement and 
accountability

 Statement on mechanisms for turning strategy into change
 Statement on the role of the Health and Wellbeing Board, 

Governance and monitoring  

3.3 With this proposal in mind, the purpose of the 12-week engagement 
detailed below is to find out whether people agree with the ‘big issues’ 
we recognise as priorities from evidence in the JSNA. These big 
issues cover not only health needs, but also health and wellbeing-
related needs across our four health building blocks for people of all 
ages. It will invite people to comment on Big Issues which aren’t 
represented or need to be changed.

3.4 This information will be used to develop a draft strategy including 
suggested ambitions that the Health and Wellbeing Board will use to 
galvanise and focus the energy and efforts of all those with a stake in 
population health. The draft strategy will be subject to a further four- 
week period of engagement, which seek feedback on these key 
ambitions and the language, relevance, and meaning conveyed in the 
strategy as a whole. 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



4. Consultation and Engagement – Questions/Questionnaire

4.1 As previously proposed this engagement will build on the successful 
toolkit and cascade strategy used in the last round of JSNA and 
HWBS engagement.  The online questionnaire will be the main 
engagement tool; a simple presentation and discussion schedule will 
enable professionals and community members to participate, capture 
and submit feedback on these questions in a group setting if this is 
more appropriate.

4.2 It remains our intention to use our existing network of stakeholders 
and meetings to deliver engagement activity rather than setting up 
bespoke events. We will work closely with partners including 
Healthwatch, Community and Voluntary sector, with particular focus 
on enabling the views of groups which stand to gain the most from this 
strategy, including young people.

4.3 It is proposed that the questionnaire will be available in a number of 
different formats:-

a) Via the Council’s consultation and engagement e-platform – this 
will be the primary methodology.

b) In hard copy format for those who do not have access to a 
computer or who would prefer to give their answers in hard copy.

c) In accessible formats which will include an easy read workbook 
for people with learning disabilities, large print, and audio 
versions.

The questionnaire will also include the standard equality questions 
which will enable analysis of the findings across the protected 
characteristics to determine if there are any differences in need for our 
hard to reach groups.

4.2 The questions will be framed around the whole life approach in the 
following categories:-

Start Well and Grow Well
Live Well and Work Well
Age Well and Die Well

4.3 Each section will contain background information from the JSNA which 
highlights areas where Sefton are doing well and those where there 
needs to be improvement.  We will use similar questions to those 
which we asked for the last major consultation exercise, including 
asking people to identify their top priority in each section.  This means 
that we can undertake analysis to see if people’s priorities have 
changed or if there are new priorities that are emerging.

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



4.4 Accompanying information will clearly set out what a Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy is for, how it is used to improve health, why we 
need to develop a new one, and how participation and feedback will 
be used to make it better.

The purpose of the questionnaire will be presented as in 3.3.  The 
intention for further engagement on the draft strategy, including 
elements indicated in 3.2 will be made clear with an early invitation to 
opt-in included in the questionnaire.

The questions will be framed around the Life Course approach in the 
following categories:-

Start Well and Grow Well
Live Well and Work Well
Age Well and Die Well

4.3 Each section will contain the relevant supporting information from the 
JSNA chapters on Health, Children, Vulnerable Adults, Lifestyle, 
Wider Determinants and Population Forecast chapters to evidence 
areas where Sefton is doing well and those where change and 
improvement is most needed.  

4.4 The indicative outline below uses the question format from the 
previous JSNA/HWBS engagement, which asks people to state 
whether they agree or disagree with the things we need to improve 
and to select one of these as a priority.

4.4 The panel is asked to note that the question content is indicative and 
may be revised. In particular the panel is asked for its views on:

 Proposed structure
 How questions are formulated
 Length of questionnaire
 Whether it is advisable to retain the prioritisation question
 Inclusion of additional information questions to explore the 

associations people make with the terms health and wellbeing, 
since research has shown that the ‘public health’ wider 
determinants concept is different to the concept of the general 
public and some professional stakeholders.

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



4.4 Start Well and Grow Well

This section provides information about children’s educational attainment, 
health (including immunisation, lifestyles, obesity) teenage pregnancy, birth 
rates, smoking during pregnancy and breast feeding.

The following questions are proposed:-

Please answer once to let us know whether you agree or disagree and then 
tell us your top priority by selecting one statement only

Agree Disagree My top 
priority

Help mothers to stop smoking during 
pregnancy

Support mothers to breastfeed their babies for 
as long as possible

Increase the amount of physical activity that 
children and young people take part in each 
week

Make it easier for children and young people 
to eat healthy food and to learn how to eat 
healthily 

All Children and young people have access to 
good quality schools and benefit from a good 
education, that helps them to achieve

Provide support for children and young 
people with mental health problems including 
alcohol, drugs and self harm

Provide early and better support so that our 
children and young people can stay with their 
families where possible

4.5 Live well and Work Well

This section will focus on reducing health inequalities, long term conditions, 
the wider determinants of health such as air quality, access to green spaces 
and leisure opportunities, and access to work and unemployment.  

The following questions are proposed:-

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



Please answer once to let us know whether you agree or disagree and then 
tell us your top priority by selecting one statement only

Agree Disagree My top 
priority

Help people to have good emotional health 
and wellbeing

Support local people, to improve their skills, 
participate in training, undertake volunteering 
and gain employment

Working towards improving air quality in 
Sefton to reduce numbers of people with 
health conditions that this causes. 

Diagnose illness earlier, to prevent cancer, 
heart disease and stroke and treat these 
conditions sooner

people with long-term conditions are 
supported to manage their own health 

People know where to go to get the right 
health and care information, advice, support, 
treatment or diagnosis to help them to live 
healthily

People feel they are listened to when they 
give their views about health, care and 
wellbeing in Sefton

Make sure that health, care and wellbeing 
services in Sefton work together to improve 
people’s lives

4.6 Age Well and Die Well

This section will focus on the health needs of our older people and the issues 
that they face including frailty, hospital admissions and discharge, care and 
support needs, the needs of carers long term conditions and end of life 
support.  

Please answer once to let us know whether you agree or disagree and then 
tell us your top priority by selecting one statement only

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



Agree Disagree My top 
priority

support carers to ensure they can continue to 
care for their families

Look at promoting lifestyles and services 
lifestyles that allow our older people to remain 
in their homes and the community longer

Support older people to remain healthier for 
longer by early diagnosis of dementia, heart 
conditions, high blood pressure and cancer, 
and treat these conditions earlier

Reduce the number of older citizens who are 
injured through falls

When older people are admitted to hospital 
they don’t spend more time than is necessary 
and that they are discharged as soon as it is 
safe to do so.

People are supported to die well in a place of 
their choosing

4.7 Free Text Box

Respondents will be able to tell us if there is anything else that they think is a 
priority for them by a free text box.  This will also give us some qualitative 
data which will be used in conjunction with the quantitative information which 
we collect:-

Please tell us here if you think there is anything missing from the list of 
statements above, and which you think is important to help keep the people 
of Sefton Healthy and Well.

5. Next Steps

5.1 A stakeholder map has been developed to make sure that the 
consultation and engagement reaches as many people as possible.  
This will include those people with protected characteristics.  We will 
work with our partners, and in particular those in the voluntary, 
community and faith sectors, to give as many people as possible the 
opportunity to give us their views.

5.2 A communications plan is being developed to ensure a consistent 
approach to key messages from the JSNA and the Health and 
Wellbeing engagement and the concurrent engagement relating to the 
NHS Long Term Plan.

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



5.3 The information, views and opinions collected during the consultation 
and engagement process will be used to inform the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and other work within the Council.  The Clinical 
Commissioning Groups will also use the information to inform and 
develop their “Shaping Sefton” plan “which is being prepared in 
response to the NHS Long Term Plan, and will also compliment and 
support the delivery of the Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy

6. Recommendations

6.1. Members of the Panel are asked to offer feedback on the proposals 
and draft questionnaire presented in this report and instruct on how 
the Health and Wellbeing Sub-Group should continue to engage in the 
light of its feedback and recommendations.

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 SEND OFSTED/CQC Review
	5 Children's Plan, Priority Update: Priority 1, Positive Educational Experience
	6 Children and Young Peoples Plan Update
	Enc. 1 for Children and Young Peoples Plan Update

	7 Better Care Fund Update
	8 Refresh of Sefton's Health and Wellbeing Strategy -Proposed Consultation and Engagement
	20191305 report for consultation panel 1705195 v1.0 final


